	Closed Framework for Research and Evaluation Services: clarification Q&A


	
	Clarification question

	Response

	1

	Could you confirm that the submission is via email at tenders@covenantfund.org.uk

	Yes, this is correct

	2
	In Section 2 Formatting it says that the response must be up to 12 pages (including attachments) and then in point (f) to attached accounts for last two years.  Could you confirm that these accounts are not part of the word count, as ours are more than 100 pages each and between 17MB and 45MB each?

	Yes, this supporting information can be provided in addition to the word count and attachments. Large files should be compressed in .zip format.

	3
	Also, in reference to point 2 above, is the 12-page response limit solely regarding the questions in the table at Section 5 (5.1).
	The 12-page response limit refers to the allowance for answers to the 5 technical questions in the table on pages 16-17 of the ITT document. The commercial element can be submitted in addition to any page or attachment limits.


	4
	In the checklist box at Section 4 (4.1) you refer to responding to all Technical as specified in Section 10, but I can only see Social Value talked about in Section 14.  Would this response about Social Value be given as a separate attachment with the filename reference of AFCFT_closed_framework_tender [bidder name]?

	The reference to social value in the check list in Section 8 (4.1) has been removed for clarity. Social Value and Sustainability as referenced in the Service Specification (Appendix B) is to be addressed as appropriate in the Technical questions (for example, T1 and/or T5, if relevant).

	5
	In the Appendix C questions, could you confirm that questions 13 and 16 can be filled in as Not Applicable.

	Question 13 of the PSQ has been updated to require a Yes or No answer. Question 16 is marked as Not Applicable by default as there are no legal capacity conditions.


	6
	For our final response document can we just start the response at Appendix C (page 37) to with our Technical response to the questions in the table at 5.1 i.e. we don’t return the ITT document in its entirety with sections duly completed.

	Yes, the final response document should begin with the PSQ (Appendix C), then responses to the Technical questions, then the completed Rate Card (Appendix G) and so on.

	7
	Is there any budget cap, or estimated level of spending for this framework? (this could be per year, or for the total framework duration).
	The estimated value of the Framework over 4 years, as per the tender notice, is £500,000. Furthermore, Section 3.2 a of Appendix B also states that call-off contracts can range from £30,000-£50,000 or £80,000-£120,000, depending on the project and the available budget, but would typically not exceed £200,000 for complex, multi-year programme evaluations.


	8
	Do you have an estimate for the number of projects you are expecting to commission through this framework? (this could be per year, or for the total framework duration).
	Estimated up to 3 call-offs per year, although the Trust makes no commitments to the number of contracts that might be available over the course of the Framework.


	9
	Would the authority be able to confirm whether the overall budget for this framework is £500,000 as per the find a tender notice?

	The estimated budget over the course of this Framework is £500,000, as per the tender notice, although this may vary according to the Trust's requirements.

	10
	Would it please be possible to confirm the minimum required values for the insurance requirements at question 15 (pg 41 of the ITT).

	The insurance requirements in Question 15 of the ITT have been updated.

	11
	In the example Day Rate card it details a specific number of days, together with a day rate. The total value of the contract over 4 years is £500,000.  Your clarification response estimates 3 call-offs per year – meaning a total of 9 potential call-offs. As each call-off could have differing number of days and team members and expenses involved, could you clarify whether this rate card should just give the day rates for each category with the number of days left as TBC.  The total cost would then be inserted as £500k?

	The calculations requested in the Rate Card are separate to and independent of estimates of budgets or potential call-offs given elsewhere.

Example figures for the Rate Card: the day rate for a Director is £500; this is multiplied by 20 days (hypothetical number of days working on a project) = £10,000 (Total £). This is done for each role as appropriate. The average cost across the team can then be calculated.

	12
	In Section 5.1 the ITT says “Provide up to three examples of previous projects. You can expand on the examples used in the PSQ or use additional examples”. Can the Trust confirm that suppliers can list more than three projects in the Technical Envelope to outline relevant experience and capabilities? Listing only three projects would significantly limit the ability of suppliers to demonstrate breadth of relevant skills and experience.

	Bidders can provide up to 3 examples of previous projects in Technical Q1. The PSQ also has scope for 3 examples. So newer organisations are not unduly disadvantaged, the same examples can be used if necessary. More experienced organisations may have more examples at their disposal, in which case there is scope for 6 examples.

	13
	In Section 5.1, suppliers are asked to “Provide short profiles of the core team who would lead and deliver work under this framework”. Does the Trust expect this core team to include all the roles listed on the rate card in Appendix G?

	No.

	14
	Can the Trust clarify if the 12 page limit for proposals includes the Commercial Envelope, or only the Technical Envelope?

	The 12-page response limit refers to the allowance for answers to the 5 technical questions in the table on pages 16-17 of the ITT document. The commercial element can be submitted in addition to any page or attachment limits.


	15
	The page limit does not allow for the inclusion of comprehensive bios or CVs for relevant staff. Would the Trust consider allowing bidders to include hyperlinks to researchers’ public bios in the Technical Envelopes, so that we can include all relevant staff credentials?

	The ITT requests short profiles of the core team, not comprehensive biographies. References to external biographies will be permitted if necessary.

	16
	Could the Trust confirm that the obligation to promote the Trust’s interests in clause 3.2 of the Agreement will always be subject to the Contractor’s Articles of Association so as to not affect the Contractor’s independence.

	Any requirement to promote the Trust’s interests does not seek to override any Articles of Association, other governing documents or the independence of contractors.

	17
	Could the Trust confirm that the Contractor will be permitted to use the results of framework projects for further research and publish. The Contractor regularly publishes the results of its research for the public benefit. We would appreciate the rights to re-use and increase the reach of the work conducted for the Trust. If not, will this be confirmed in each RfP issued under the framework?

	Permission to use of data and results from research contracts under this Framework for further work will not be unreasonably withheld, subject to any specific restrictions that may be necessary in individual call-offs. Outputs from any research and evaluation contracts with the Trust are routinely published for the public benefit.

	18
	Please could the Trust clarify that the Contractor’s pre-existing IP will not be transferred to the Trust under clause 9.2 of the Agreement where such IP is developed for a project.

	Pre-existing IP will not be required to be transferred to the Trust.

	19
	Could the Trust clarify that the right to request meetings and progress reports under clause 10.1 be as reasonably requested.

	Requests for meetings and progress reports will be reasonable and proportionate.

	20
	Could the Trust clarify whether any projects will require DBS checks. If not, will this be confirmed in each RfP issued under the framework?

	Any requirements for DBS checks will be stated in call-off ITTs if relevant.

	21
	Clause 18.5 places a restriction on the Contractor’s recruitment processes that cannot be practically implemented. The Contractor employs an equal opportunities policy which will not necessarily positively discriminate. Selection of under-representative groups could lead to fractional recruitment requirements that cannot be implemented. Could the Trust clarify that this clause will not affect the Contractor’s recruitment processes.

	The clause will not unduly affect the contractor’s recruitment processes.

	22
	Would the Contractor be expected to conduct due diligence on subcontractors imposed on the Contractor under clause 8.2? If a selected subcontractor fails due diligence, would the Contractor be required to subcontract them in any event?

	If the Trust requires that a contractor must work with a specific sub-contractor, then the contractor will not be expected to conduct due diligence. If a specific sub-contractor is part of a contractor’s proposal, they are subject to the same requirements and standards as the contractor where relevant and appropriate, and their details included in Part 2B of the PSQ.


	23
	Is there a requirement for bidders to demonstrate prior research and/or evaluation experience specifically with the armed forces community? Alternatively, would broader research and evaluation experience with other populations experiencing stigma, trauma or vulnerability (for example, young people in conflict-affected settings, marginalised youth, or LGBTQ+ communities) be considered sufficient where relevance and transferability are clearly evidenced?

	The Trust is seeking bidders with a wide range of relevant skills and experience for inclusion in this Framework - there is no requirement for experience working with the armed forces community, and expertise with other populations and communities would be welcomed.

There may be circumstances where specific experience or expertise with the armed force community is essential or desirable for the successful delivery of a call-off project at a later date, but this would be stated in the specific call-off ITT.


	24
	Can the Technical Submission include graphic design elements such as diagrams, figures, images, or a designed cover page, provided the document remains within the 12-page limit and complies with the formatting requirements (e.g. Arial font, size 11)?

	Yes, graphic design elements can be included in the Technical submission.

	25
	Will the Trust provide separate, editable templates for the Procurement Specific Questionnaire (Appendix C), Form of Tender (Appendix E) and Commercially Sensitive Information (Appendix F)? If not, should bidders replicate these forms directly from the ITT document and submit them as completed documents?

	Bidders should replicate or copy the templates in the ITT and submit them as complete documents. A Word version of the ITT has been provided to aid this.

	26
	Where specialist subcontractors are not known at the Framework bidding stage, can these be proposed at Call-Off stage, subject to Trust approval and the relevant Conditions of Participation and debarment checks?

	Yes, this is more relevant for the call-off stage.

	27
	In assessing Technical Question 1, can the Trust confirm whether experience with comparable vulnerable or trauma-affected populations outside the armed forces community will be scored similarly, where the relevance to the Trust’s requirements and armed forces context is clearly demonstrated?

	Yes, experience with comparable populations will be scored similarly. Considerations about working with the armed forces community should be factored into Technical question 5.

	28
	When assessing bidders’ capacity to manage peaks in demand across multiple Call-Offs, will evaluators place greater weight on named in-house staff capacity, or will access to established associate or partner networks be considered equally, where governance and continuity arrangements are clearly described?

	Access to established associate or partner networks be considered equally as the Trust does not want to unfairly exclude capable smaller teams or organisations.

	29
	The ITT refers to Conditions of Participation, including in Part 3 of the PSQ; however, it is not entirely clear where these are comprehensively listed. Could the Trust please confirm where the full set of Conditions of Participation can be found, or provide further clarification?

	Conditions of Participation relate to satisfying the requirements specified throughout the ITT. Specifically for Part 3 of the PSQ, this includes the declaration in Q13 and Q18, referencing the technical questions to be assessed. Part 3, Q20 mentions where/if organisational qualifications having been specified, however there are no requirements for this.


	30
	The ITT states that tenders submitted by potential consortia must include a Letter of Intent to form a consortium. Does this requirement apply to individual consultants engaged for specific specialist tasks (for example, economic or cost-effectiveness analysis), or only to larger organisational partners or consortium members relied upon to meet Conditions of Participation?

	Letters of intent for consortium will only be applicable where bidders propose this arrangement in response to a specific call-off ITT.

	31
	Is there any guidance on document margin sizes for the Technical Submission, beyond the specified font type and size?

	No.

	32
	In the ITT, Section 4 – Content, the second row of the table states: “Technical Submission: You must respond to all Technical criteria (including social value) specified in Section 10 (The assessment process and award criteria)”. However, Section 10 does not explain how social value should be addressed – whether it should be a separate section (and, if so, what its weighting would be) or whether it should be incorporated within another part of the technical submission. If it is a separate section, should it be included within the overall page limit of up to 12 pages?

	The reference to social value in the check list in Section 8 (4.1) has been removed for clarity. Social Value and Sustainability as referenced in the Service Specification (Appendix B) is to be addressed as appropriate in the Technical questions (for example, T1 and/or T5, if relevant).

	33
	In a similar vein to the query on the day rate card, could I ask the same about the listing on sub-contractors. Would it be okay to put ‘No’ to these questions on the basis that on subsequent call-offs we’ll be able to give sub-contractor details for specific projects?

	Yes, that’s correct. Sub-contractors are only likely applicable during specific call-offs.

	34
	The clarifications issued to date appear to provide conflicting guidance on page limits. Could the Trust please confirm whether:
The 12-page limit applies only to responses to the five technical questions in the table at Section 5 (5.1) – covering T1 (Relevant experience and capabilities) through to T5 (Engagement, ethics and safeguarding).
or
The 12-page limit applies to the entire submission, including both the Technical and Commercial Envelopes.

	The 12-page response limit refers to the allowance for answers to the 5 technical questions in the table on pages 16-17 of the ITT document. The commercial element can be submitted in addition to any page or attachment limits. Earlier responses have been clarified.


	35
	The Trust has advised that Social Value and Sustainability should be addressed within the Technical questions (e.g. T1 and/or T5), rather than as a standalone section.
Could the Trust please confirm whether it is acceptable to:
Include evidence of past Social Value delivery within T1 (Relevant experience and capabilities); and
Address proposed Social Value delivery during call-off contracts within T5 (Engagement, Ethics and Safeguarding).
Please confirm whether this approach fully meets the Trust’s expectations for assessing Social Value.

	This approach meets the Trust’s expectations for assessing social value.

	36
	The ITT requires submission of a rate card with example days and day rates, which will be used to calculate an average team cost for evaluation. However, it is unclear how these rates will be treated post-award.
Could the Trust please clarify whether:
The day rates submitted are for evaluation purposes only; or
The submitted day rates will be contractually binding and used under the framework and subsequent call-off contracts, including across the full four-year term.

	The day rates submitted are primarily for evaluation purposes and will not be contractually binding, although it would be expected that any subsequent rates provided by a successful bidder would broadly be in alignment with those stated in this tender, with reasonable adjustments depending on the circumstances.

	37
	If the submitted day rates are contractually binding at framework award, can they be reviewed and refreshed annually after the first year of the framework, or will they remain fixed for the full four-year framework term?
	The day rates submitted are primarily for evaluation purposes and will not be contractually binding, although it would be expected that any subsequent rates provided by a successful bidder would broadly be in alignment with those stated in this tender, with reasonable adjustments depending on the circumstances. Rates can be reviewed for each call-off within the Framework.


	38
	You have proposed specific roles within the rate card. Please confirm whether there is flexibility to introduce additional roles at call-off stage, should project-specific requirements arise that are not covered by the existing rate card.

	Yes, different/additional roles can be proposed for subsequent call-offs.

	39
	The response to question 3 says “The 12-page response limit refers to the allowance for answers to the 5 technical questions in the table” whereas the response to question 14 is “The 12-page limit includes the Commercial envelope”. The Commercial section is not part of the 5 technical questions in the table. Therefore, could you please confirm if Appendix G – rate card – the Commercial section should be included in the 12-page limit.

	The 12-page response limit refers to the allowance for answers to the 5 technical questions in the table on pages 16-17 of the ITT document. Appendix G – rate card – the Commercial section can be submitted in addition to any page or attachment limits. Earlier responses have been clarified.

	40
	Ref the PSQ, can you please confirm there are no Financial Capacity Conditions of Participation for this tender exercise?
	An updated document has been available for some time. The financial capacity question (13) states: ‘Has your organisation, its directors, or parent company been subject to insolvency, liquidation, bankruptcy, administration, or similar proceedings in the past 5 years?’


	41
	Ref the PSQ, can you please confirm there are no Legal Capacity Conditions of Participation for this tender exercise?
	An updated document has been available for some time. The legal capacity question states not applicable.


	42
	Do you anticipate call-off contracts focus on single programmes or combine multiple thematic areas within a single contract?

	There is potential for both of these types of contracts, and others.

	43
	Will AFCFT provide access to existing monitoring data and previous evaluations for secondary analysis/data review?
	Yes

	44
	Are there any restrictions on integrating external datasets or secondary data sources with regard to data protocols for sensitivity?

	Not specifically, although each circumstance will be assessed accordingly to ensure data security, GDPR compliance and other safety measures are in place where needed.


	45
	Do you anticipate a roughly equal allocation of tender opportunities / value across the areas outlined in APPENDIX B – SERVICE SPECIFICATION Background 1.5 or will activity be more heavily weighted to a specific area?

	There is roughly equal potential for each of these four main areas of research activity to be required over the course of this Framework.

	46
	Are you able to describe the level of stakeholder engagement expected on sensitive topics with vulnerable groups (e.g. workshops, advisory/focus groups, interviews, etc.)

	This will depend on the contract requirements and circumstances, but some engagement with vulnerable groups may be required and will be expected to be handled appropriately.



